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may err on the side of caution and require legal opinions more often than FASB intended.
- As we have communicated to FASB previously, it would be economically unfeasible for
:T community banks to obtain a legal opinion for each participation arrangement and the
resulting unnecessary legal costs would lead to higher lending costs. Thus, it would be
helpful for FASB to provide some additional guidance on characteristics of true sales that
bankers may rely on in determining a legal optnion 1s not needed in a particular case.

Effective Date and Transition |

ICBA urges FASB to provide a longer transition period than proposed in the Exposure
Draft. The provisions of paragraph 9(a) as amended would be applied by both public and
nonpublic entities upon issuance of the Statement. If the transferor, its consolidated
affiliates, or its agents have any remaining commitments related to the transferred
financial assets to deliver additional cash or other assets, the provisions alse would be
applicable to transfers occurring prior to the effective date of the proposed Statement.
ICBA believes that applying this requirement retroactively could be disruptive to credit
flows. These transactions would have been negotiated under current accounting rules and
transitioning to new isolation tests may result in disruption in the transaction.

A public entity would apply all other derecognition provisions to transfers of financial
assets occurring after the end of the first fiscal quarter beginning after the issuance of the
final Statement. Both public and nonpublic entities would apply the measurement
provisions of paragraphs 10 and 11 of the proposal at the earlier of fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005 or fiscal years beginning during the quarter in which the final

o~ Statement is issued. For a public or nonpublic entity with a calendar year-end, if the final
Statement is issued in February 2006, those provisions would apply to transfers
beginning as of January 1, 2006.

If an entity has a continuing obligation 1in connection with a transaction and that
obligation does not meet the amended general condition related to tsolation (paragraph
9(a) as amended), that entity would be required to change its accounting for that
transaction upon issuance of the final Statement. The effect of any changes in accounting
for transactions reported in previously 1ssued financial statement would be reported as the
cumulative effect of an accounting change as described in paragraph 11 of the proposed
statement. Otherwise, an entity may retain the accounting for previous transactions and
formerly qualifying SPEs provided that certain conditions are met. We believe a
transition period is needed for institutions to review and potentially revise documents
after the issuance of the Statement.

We urge FASB not to require any retroactive application of requirement contained in the
final statement. Existing participation arrangements were negotiated based on current
accounting rules. It will take some time for community banks, their accountants and
legal counsels to digest the new accounting requirements and make necessary changes to
loan participation documents. This will be a coraplex process since the legal
requirements of several states may need to be met to determine whether a transaction is a
true sale. In our view, a one-year transition period would be more appropriate.
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| Summary -

= Buying and selling loan participations and guaranteed loans are key activities in

community banking. These are not new activities, but have long been relied on to keep
credit flowing in communities, particularly to businesses. While FASB has made a great
deal of progress in ensuring that changes to Statement 140 do not disrupt this business by
imposing costly new accounting requirements, we continue have concerns about aspects
of the proposal. We urge FASB to permit banks to continue to use LIFO/FIFO
arrangements to facilitate transactions, clarify that the sale of guaranteed loans might still
qualify for sales treatment and provide more time to implement the accounting changes.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment. If you wish to discuss our comments further,
please contact the und_ersigned at (800) 422-8439 or ann. grochala@icba.org.

Sincerely,

Ann M. Grochala,
Director, Lending and Accounting Policy
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